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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

Compluinant

TRACEY LEE TRAHAN > 5
=
Respondent. ;P M

Docket Number: CG S&R 07-0149
CG Caxe No, 2ERO246

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR SUMMARY DECISION

Issued: August 14, 2007

Hon. Parfen L. McKenna, Presiding
Preliminaryv Statement

The United States Coast Guard (Coast Guard) initiated this administrative action seeking
revocation of License Number 962916 issucd to Tracey Lee Trahan (Respondent). This action is
brought pursuant to the fegal authority contained in 46 U.S.C. 7704 and 1ts underlying
reguiations codified at 46 CFR Part 5,

On April 4, 2007, the Coast Guard issued a Complaint charging Respondent with one (1)
count of Conviction for 2 Dangerous Drug Law Violation, in violation of 46 U.S.C. 7704(b}.
Specthically, the Coast Guard alleges Respondent was convicted of Attempted Possession of
Cocaine in Excess of 400 Grams by the State of Louisiana on March 28, 2005, In resporise, on
April 19,2007, Respondent filed a letter titled Reguest for Review by the Chief Administrative

Law Judge (Answer). In the Answer, Respondent admits to the alleged conviclion, however
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Respondent asserts he “was wrongly convicted in that frial” and is appealing the trial court’s
ruling, Respondent requests that he maintain possession of his license while his conviction is on
appeal.

On Apnil 30, 2007, the Coast Guard filed a Motion to Amend Complaint. In the
Amended Complaint. the Coast Guard charges Respondent with an additional factual allegation,
Violation of Law or Regulation. The Coast Guard allepes Respondent mastered an Uninspected
Towing Vessel without the proper mariner credential, a violation of' 46 CFR 15.610. Respondent
did not file an Answer addressing the new allegation. On May 1, 2007, this case was assigned o
this judge for adjudication,

On May 7, 2007, the Coast Guard filed a Motion for Summary Decision. In this Motion,
the Coast Guard moves for summary decision on the grounds that there are no genuine issues of
material fact concerning the charge of Conviction of s Dangerous Drug Law Violauon. The
Coust Guard withdrew the Violation of Law or Regulation charge. On June 15, 2007,
Respondent filed a Response to the Coast Guard's Motion for Summary Decision, In that
respanse, Respondent states his atterney “formally appealed my conviction on atfempted
possession” and that revocation of his license would “be a miscarriage of justice™ and would

deny him “a livelihood to adequately support™ his family,

Discussion
Motion for Summary Decision
Pursuant to 33 CFR 20.901(a), “{ajny parly may move for a summary decision in ail or
any part of the proceeding on the grounds that there are no genuing issucs of material fact and
that the party is entitled to a decision as a matter of law.” An 2 judge may grant a panty’s motion

for summary decision “if the filed affidavits, the filed documents, the materal obtained by

[
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discovery or otherwise, or matters offictally noted show that there is no genuine issuc of maienal
fact and that a4 party is entitled to a summary decision as a matrer of law.” 33 CFR 20.901(b).
The undersigned will conduct an examination of the charge, Conviction for @ Dangerous Drug
Law Vielation, to determine whether there exist any issues of material lael so as 1o make o
sutnmary decision mappropriate.
Conviction for a Dangerous Drug Law Violation
The Coast Guard has charged Respondent with Convietion for a Dangerous Drug Law

Violation. (Coast Guard Complaint and Coast Guard Amended Complaint). Pursuant to 40
U.S.CL7704(b):

If it is shown at a hearing under this chapter that a holder of a

license, certificate of registry, or merchant mariner's document

wssued under this part, within 10 years before the beginning of the

proceedings, has been convicted of violating a dangerous drug law

of the United States or of a State, the ficense, certificate, or

document shali be suspended or revoked.
In order to prove its case. the Coast Guard must demonstrate that: (1) Respondent s “a holder of
a license. certificate of registry. or merchant mariner's document:” and (2) “within 10 vears
before the beginning of the proceedings, [Respondent] has been convicted of violating ¢
dangerous drug faw of the United States or of a State.™ S¢e 46 U.S.C. 7704(b).

The Ceast Guard properly made all required jurisdictional and factual ailcgations o

prove a violation of 46 U,S.CL 7704(h}. The Coast Guard established that Respondent is a holder
of a Coust Guard issued license. (Motion for Summary Decision: Exhibit 2). Respondent adrmits

to ustng fis f1cense Lo earn a living and requests he maimtain possession of this license while his

lak
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conviction for Attempted Posscession of Cocaine is on appeal. (Answer). 1n addition,
Respondent provided a copy of his license with his Answer.! (Answer: Enclosure 2).

The Coast Guard also demonstrated that Respondent was convicted within the last ten
(1O0Y years of violating a danperous drug law of the United States. In support of this tactual
alfegation, the Coast Guard provided court records establishing that the State of Louisiana found
Respondent “guilty of attempted possession of cocaine in excess of 400 grams after tnal to the
Court en March 28, 2005." (Motion for Summary Decision: Enclosure 1), A conviction for
attempted possession of cosaine salisties the requirement of violuting a dangerous drug taw. Sge
Appeal Decision 2459 (LOMAND) (1987).

Respondent admits to the 2005 conviction of attempred possession of cocaine, but
maintams his innocence and is appealing the conviction. (Answer). Respondent states, “[wlhile
that trial.™ (Id.). However, a beliel in one’s “innocence of the charge underlying the state
conviction . . . has no bearing on these proceedings.” See Appeal Decision 2459 (LORMAND)
{1987). Revocation is mandatory when a respondent is “convicted for a violation of the
dangerous drug laws, whether or aot further court action is pending, and such charge is found proved.”

Appeal Devivion 2511 (GILTNER) (1990) (oiting 46 CFR 5,59(h). A “conviction ts considered *final’

regardless of any pending appeal.”™ Id. I a respondent’s license is revoked and then the underlying
convietion s sel aside on appeal, that respondent “could then request that the arder [ofl revocation be

cescinded,” Appeal Degision 2200 (BROADNAX) (1980), Also see, 33 CER, § 20.904,

" Ruespendent’s Heehse was tsgod @ the Port of Mew Otieans, Lowisiana on December b, 2001 and wis sel to SXpHE O
December &, 2000, (Answer: Enciosure 2. However, beeause of the devastation created by Hurricane Katrina, Congress
eriended. by one yeur, the renewal date of sl mariner eredentisle issaed ar New Oricans, Lotisiang which expire belwesn August
2002005 and Apedd | 2007, Canvt Guard apd Merisie Trany, Acr, Poh, L No, 300211, § 707 (2008 published in the )
Mevehant Marine Credentole: Pemparary Proseduras, 71 Fed, Rey, 47 238, Respondent®s Heense is tharefore valid unitd
Devember n, 2607 )
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However., prior to a conviction being set aside, a respondent’s “collateral attack on his
criminal conviction . . . can not be raised in these administrative proceedings.” See Id.
Respondent’s conviction of attempred possession of cocaine is considered a vielation of a
dangerous drug law, whether or not the conviction 1s on appeal.

The Coast Guard properly made all required jurisdictional and factual allegations o
prove Respondent vielated 46 U.S.C. 7704, The Coast Guard has established that (1)
Respondent 18 a holder of License No. 962916 and (2) Respondent was convicted of violating a
dangerous drug law of the United States, on March 2R, 2005, Respondent has raised no
arguments which call into question the clements required to prove a Conviction for a Dangerous
Drug Law Violation, As such. as a matter of law, the undersigned linds the charge of Conviction
for & Dangerous Drug Law Violation, in violation of 46 U.S.C. 7704(h) proved. The Motion for

Summary Decision ts Granted.

Sanction
The Coast Guard sccks revocation of Respondent”s license. Respondent argues that
revocation 15 not mandatory and assets “[tihe law at 46 U8, Code § 7704(b) states a license or

document may be suspended or revoked.” (Respondent’s Response to the Coast Guard Motion

for Summary Deeision). Respondent cites to the AL decision USCG v. Savoie. 05-0008

(USCG ALT June 10, 2005) to support his argument.” {Answer). While Respondent is correct
that the statule indicates both suspension and revocation are appropriate sanctions for Conviction

for a Dangerous Drug Law Violation, it is clear that revocation is the only appropriate sanction

S B FROG v Savone, O5-0008 (USCG ALY June 10, 2005), e Coast Guard charged Respondem with a violation of
A0 USC TT04(h), To twt vase, the judie found the charges peaved and suspended the respondents credentiils for
_f"f‘rlﬁf' (43 months. The Cosst Guard believed tie only upproprisic sanction wax revocation and appealed the decision.
Fhast g::rs“‘c.ir; sull pending review by the Commandant, The undersigned agrees that the only sppropriate sunction for
cases arng ander 36 USC 77040} s revocation: os explained in the Sanction section of thix deciston, The

'
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inn this matter. When the Coast Guard and Mantime Transportation Act” amended 46 US.C.
7704{k), 1t changed “shall be rev c;ked" to “shall be suspended or revoked.” Allowing the Coast

n

CGuard “the diserction 1o suspend a mariner’s credentials .. " was intended to “allow the use of
ttlement Agreements to resolve cases involving minor drug convictions.” LR, Conl. Rep. No.
FO8-617, at 78 (2004). However, the Act did not amend 46 CFR 3.59 which mandates
revocation (emphasis added) if a charge of Conviction for a Dangerous Drug Law Violation is
found proved. Consequently, in absence of a settlement agreement, if a Conviction for a
Dangerous Drug Law Vielation 1s found proved, the judge must order revocation, Since the
undersigned found that Respondent violated 46 U.S.C. 7704(b). Conviction for a Dangerous

Drug Law Violation, revocation of Respondent’s license is the only legally appropriate sanction

in this matter,
ORDER

I'T 1S HEREBY ORDERED that the Coast Guard's Motion for Summary Decision is
GRANTED: Respondent’s License, and all other valid licenses, documents, and endorsements

issued by the Coast Guard to Tracey Lee Trahan are REVOKED.

undersipned (s not bound by the judicia hu?dmg m USCG v, Saveie. Unbike Commandant Decisions, ALY decisions
are 0! published and cannot be relicd upen as precedent, Sge 46 CFR $.65; Scenlse STLE.C 532002
' Pub L 108293, Tide IV, § 402 (Aup. 9. 2004), a

&
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the service of this Order Grantng Motion for Summary
Decision serves as notice to the Respondent of his right to appeal, the procedures for which are

set forth in 33 CFR 20,1001 through 201003 and are located below 1n Attachment AL

SO 2 Mk

HON. PARLEN L. MCKENNA
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE
U.S. COAST GUARD

Done and dated on this 14™ day of August, 2007
Alameda, CA
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ATTACHMUENT A

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL RIGHTS

33 CFR 20,1001 General.

{a) Any party may appeal the ALTs decision by filing a notice of appeal. The party
shall file the notice with the U. S, Coast Guard Administrative Law Judge Docketing
Center: Attention: Hearing Docket Clerk; Room 412; 40 S, Gay Street; Baltimore,
MI> 21201-4022. The party shall file the notice 30 days or less after issuance of the
decision, and shall serve a copy of it on the other party and each interested person,

(b} No party may appeal except on the following issucs:
{1} Whether cach finding of fact is supported by substantial evidence.
(2) Whether cach conclusion of faw accords with applicable law, precedent, and
pubiic policy.
(3} Whether the ALJ abused his or her discretfion,
{4) The ALTs denial of 2 motion for disqualification.

(¢} No interested person may appeal a summary decision except on the issue that no
hearing was held or that in the issuance of the decision the ALY did not consider
cvidence that that person would have presented.

(d) The appeal must follow the procedural requiremnents of this subpart,
33 CFR 20,1002 Records on appeal.
{a) The record of the proceeding constitutes the record for deciston on appeal.

(b} I{ the respondent requests a copy of the transcript of the hearing as part of the record
ol proceeding, then, --
(1) I the hearing was recorded at Federal expense, the Coast Guard will provide
the transeript on payment of the {es preseribed in 49 CTR 7.435; but,
(2) If'the hearing was recorded by a Federal contractor, the confractor will
provide the transcript on the terms preseribed in 49 CFR 7.45.

33 CFR 20,1003 Procedures for appeal.

{a} Each party appealing the AL decision or ruling shall file an appellate brief with the
Commandant at the following address: U8, Coast Guard Administrative Law Judge
Docketing Center; Altention: Hearing Docket Clerk; Room 412; 40 S, Gay Street;
Baltimore, MD 21201-4022, and shall serve a copy of the brief en every other party.

(1) The appellate bricf must set {orth the appellunt's specitfic objections to the
deetsion or ruling. The brief must set forth, in detml, the -
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(1) B asis for the appeal;
{ii) Reasons supporting the appeall and
(s11) Relicf requested 1n the appeal.

{2) When the appellant relics on material contained in the record, the appellate
bricf must specifically refer to the pertinent parts of the record.

{3} The appeliate brief must reach the Docketing Center 60 days or less after
service of the ALI's deaision. Unless filed within this time, or wathin another
time period authorized in writing by the Docketing Certer, the bricf will be
untimely.

(b) Any party may [ile a reply bricl with the Docketing Center 35 days or less after
service of the appellate briet. Bach such party shall serve a copy on every other party.
If the party Oling the reply brief relies on evidence contained n the record for the
appeal, that bric must specifically refer to the pertinent parts of the record,

(¢) No party may file more than one appellate brief or reply brict, unless -~
(1) The party has petitioned the Commandant in wrting; and
(2) The Commandant has granted leave to file an added brief, in which event the
Commandant wil allow a reasonable time for the party to file that brief.

() The Commandant may accept an amicus curiae briet from any person in an appeal of
an AL decision,

33 CFR 20.10604 Decisions on appeal.

(a) The Conmandant shall review the record on appeal to determine whether the AL
committed crror in the proceedings, and whether the Commandant should aftirm,
modify, or reverse the ALY's decision or should remand the case for further
proceedings,

(b) The Commandant shall issuc a decision on cvery appeal in writing and shall serve
a copy of the decision on each party and interested person.





